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The Supreme Court unanimously reversed the Sixth Circuit in Sheriff v. Gillie, Docket No.

15-338, holding that letters sent on the Ohio Attorney General’s letterhead by private
debt collectors are neither deceptive nor misleading. While we are still digesting the
opinion as to its long-term import, here are our initial impressions:
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The defendants’ petition to the Supreme Court posed two issues. First, whether the
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By jumping to the second issue, the Court’s holding has broader implications that it
might not otherwise have had and yet, it does not address the issue we were all hoping
to see addressed: the general liability standard for violations of §1692e. Currently, the
circuits are split as to the general liability standard for debt communications. The
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have applied an “unsophisticated consumer.” While the Court had the opportunity to
adopt a singular test applicable across the circuits, it sidestepped the issue.
Instead, the Court focused on whether the use of the Attorney General’s letterhead at
the Attorney General’s direction was false or misleading and specifically, on whether it
violated 15 USC §§1692e (9) and (14). Subsection 9 prohibits debt collectors from falsely
representing that a communication is “authorized, issued or approved” by a State.
Subsection 14 prohibits debt collectors from using a name other than their true name.
The Court concluded that the letters did not violate either provision. Since the Attorney
General required the use of his letterhead, “[s]pecial counsel create no false impression
in doing just what they had been instructed to do. Instead, their use of the Attorney
General’s letterhead conveys on whose authority special counsel write to the debtor.”
Slip Op. 8-9. Likewise, the Court concluded there was no violation of subsection 14. “Far
from misrepresenting special counsel’s identity, letters sent by special counsel
accurately identify the office primarily responsible for collection of the debt…special
counsel’s affiliation with that office, and the address…to which payment should be
sent.” Slip Op. at 9.
Takeaways
The biggest takeaway is what Sheriff did not do. While it tackled the issue with the
broadest ramifications (the §1692e issue), it did not address the liability standard and
nowhere is there any mention of the “least sophisticated consumer.” Instead, the Court
focused solely on the language of subsections 9 and 14 in the context of the underlying
facts and whether the letters were, in fact, deceptive or misleading. The Court concluded
that not only was the communication accurate but also was dismissive of any contention
that the communication was deceptive, describing the letters as “milquetoast.”
The second big takeaway comes from both the opinion and the oral arguments. In both,
the Court demonstrates a very practical approach to the FDCPA and does not appear to
be inclined to expand liability under the FDCPA to include far-fetched notions of
consumer confusion or intimidation. Instead, by keeping its opinion to the narrow issues
presented, the Court appears content to focus on the underlying facts and rely upon the
four corners of the statute, interpreting the Act in a practical and narrow manner, giving
meaning to the Congressional intent of the Act.
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